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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Filling and Packing Matenals
Manufacturing Company - A Saudi Joint Stock Company (“the Company”) and its subsidiary
(“the Group") which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2020, the consolidated statements of profits or lesses and other comprehensive income, change in
cquity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the ycar then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi
Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) that are
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the professional code
of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements. We belicve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sigmficance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year, These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Key audit matters are W

Valuation of Inventories

Refer Note (3-2-3) for the accounting policy on inventories and Note (7) for the relevant disclosures.

Key audit matter

As at December 31, 2020, the
inventories balance was SR 47 905 769
(2019: SR 47 598 693) net of

allowance for slow moving inventories
of SR 4 699 919 (2019: SR 6 439 096).

Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realizable value and an
allowance is made, where nccessary,
for obsolete and slow moving
inventories. Management determines
the level of obsolescence of inventories
by considering the nature, ageing
profile, their expiry dates and sales
expectations using historic trends and
other qualitative factors. At each
reporting date, the cost of inventories
is reduced where inventories arc
forecasted to be sold at below cost.

We consider this as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgments and
key assumptions applied by the
management in determining the
allowance for slow moving inventories
and the level of inventories write down
requircd based on Net Realisable
Value (NRV) assessment.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following audit procedures in relation
to valuation of inventories:

- Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's accounting
policies for recognition and measurement of
inventories in linc with the requircments of relevant
accounting standards;

- Assessed the design and implementation, and tested the
operating effectivencss of the Group’s control around
recognition and subsequent measurcment of inventories
including the monitoring of the allowance for slow
moving items;

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the Group’s policy for
allowance for slow moving inventories by performing
retrospective testing, comparing historical estimates
with actual losses; and current and future expectations
with respect to sales

- Attended periodical physical count of inventories on
selected locations to identify expired, lost or slow-
moving items;

- Tested the net rcalisable valuc of finished goods
inventories by considering actual sales post year- end
and the assumptions used by the management to check
whether inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net rcalisable value; and

- Considered the adequacy of the disclosure in the
Group's consolidated financial statements as per the
applicable accounting standard.

2\8



A3 iy 2 e s Al 28

Jleal gu Lty &g 9318 O gaulone

OSAMA A, EL KHERELJI & PARTNER CO.

>
Certified Public Accountants & Business Consultants d _d I
Independdev) Member

#7 PrimeGlobal | #6227 e

(0 %) oy sk 3

TItAE dha Vo 1N 0
VIVAIAY /9 e e ke - Sl
APy &_,‘“

0 ) s ad | AKARLY - ke

Ucenss No. 502

P.O Box 15046 Jeddsh 21444
Tol,: 6600085 / 6670652

Fax: 6608320

Jaddah - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Revenue recognition
Refer Note (3-2-11) for the accounting policy related to revenue recognition and Note (19) for the

relevant disclosures,

Key audit matter

During the year ended
December 31, 2020, the
Group recognized  total
revenue of SR 181 512 822
{2019: SR 164 139 844).

Revenue is a key measure of
the performance and there is
a risk that revenue may be
overstated resulting more
profit so we consider this as
a key audit mattcr.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
We performed the following audit procedures in relation to revenue

recognition:

- Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policies by considering the requirements of relevant
accounting standards;

- Assessed the design and implementation, and tested the
effectivencss of the Group's controls, including anti-fraud
controls, over the recognition of revenue as per the Group's
policy;

- Performed analytical procedures for revenue, by companng
sales quantities and prices for the current year with the previous
year, and determining whether there are any significant trends or
fluctuations need to complete further inguiries and testing in
light of our understanding of current market conditions;

- Inspected a sample of sales transactions taking place before and
after the year-end to assess whether revenue was recognized in
the correct accounting period;

- Tested a sample of journal entries posted to the revenue journal
in order to identify unusual or irregular items;

- Obtained an understanding of the nature of revenue contracts
used by the Group for each significant revenue stream, tested a
sample of representative sales contracts to confirm our
understanding and assess whether or not management's
application of IFRS 15 requirements was in accordance with the
accounting standard; and

- Considered the adequacy of the disclosure in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as per the applicable
accounting standard.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer Note (3-2-9) for the accounting policy on impairment of trade receivables and Note (8) for the

relevant disclosures.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at December 31, 2020, the trade We performed the following audit procedures in

receivables balance was SR 43 167 652
(2019: SR 52 594 727) net of allowance of
impairment of trade receivables of SR
2 915 420 (2019: SR 4 192 386). The
possibility of collecting trade receivables is
a key element in managing the working
capital of the Group, which is managed
Continuously.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” requires
management to identify and recognisc
expected  credit  losses.  Significant
judgments have been made, estimates and
assumptions madc by management in
applying the Intcrnational Financial
Reporting Standard (9).

We consider this as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgments and key
assumptions applied by the management in
defermining and calculating expected credit
losses.

relation to valuation of inventories;

- Assessed the design and implementation, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the Group's
control around recognition and subscquent
measurement of trade reccivables including the
impairment of trade receivablcs;

- Assessed the mcthodology, assumptions and
estimates used in the expected credit loss
models, including the futurc projections use;

- Assessed the completeness and accuracy of the
aging reports.

- Follow-up of a sample of collections of trade

receivables balances in the subsequent period of
the consolidated financial statements date.

- Considered the adequacy of the disclosure in the
Group's consolidated financial statements as per
the applicable accounting standeard.

4\8
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

A contingent liability for acquis the non-controlling interest
Refer Note (3-2-9) for the accounting policy on the contingent liability for acquis the non-controlling

interest and Note (25) for the relevant disclosures.

Key audit matter

During the year 2020 the parent company acquired
the non-controlling interest in the subsidiary
represented in 20% of the company’s interest ,against
a percentage of the future net profit without charging
the seller any current or the future losses.
Accordingly, the company prepared a study as on
Dccember 31, 2020 to calculate that obligation
according to the best estimate, in light of the available
data, as that liability amounted to SR 20,325,000 ,
Management used a set of key assumptions and
estimates related to study to calculate the obligation |,
based on the future operating performance, the
following are the most significant assumptions and
financial estimates were used:

- Expected volume of production

- Estimated sales quantities

- Forecasts of sales prices and growth rates

- Operating cost and the future development

- Discount rates

IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and
Contingent Assets” requires that the management
recognised a provision in the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the cnd of the reporting period.

We consider this as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgments and key assumptions applied by
the management in determining the contingent
liability.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
We performed the following audit

procedures in rclation to the contingent

liability for acquis the non-controlling

interest:

- Compare a sample of price forecast with
market data points and competitors;

- Involving a specialist to review the study
and the reasonableness of the assumptions
and financial estimates used;

-Discussing the company's various
departments on the compatibility of some
unobservable inputs, such as the expected
production volume, the future operating
and development costs, and their
compatibility with the normal production
capacity.,

- Asscssed the reasonablencss of the
methodology and the inputs used to
determine the contingent liability.

- Assessed the reasonableness of discount
rates by validating rclevant assumptions
with observablc market data.

- Perform a scositivity analyses over the
key assumptions and assess the potential
impact of a range of possible outcomes.

- Considered the adequacy of the disclosure
in the Group's consolidated financial
statements as per the applicable
accounting standard.

5\8
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Independent Auditors” Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Other Matters

- The consolidated [inancial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements on March 30, 2020.

- As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
we audited the adjustments described in Note (32) from the accompanying notcs of the consolidated
financial statements that were applicd to restate the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019, In our opinion, theése adjustments are appropriate and have been
properly applied. We were not cngaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 21, 2019, other than with respect to
the adjustments. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on those
whol ive consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 taken as a
whole.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements docs not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or othcrwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Management is onsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the
applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and Company’s By-laws and for such
internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors members are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

6\8
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Auditors’ ibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated cial S

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 'Reasonable assurance' is a high level of
assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (IASs) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LASs) that are endorsed

in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

skcpuclsm throughout the audit. We also:
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the cffectivencess of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

T8
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Independent Auditors” Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitics or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit,
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The regulation for Companies requires the auditor to include in his report any violation of the
Companies’regulations or the Company’s articles of association. During our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, we did not note any violation of the Companies® regulations or the Company's
articles of association with respect to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Date: Rajab 13, 1442 H.

Correspounding to February 25, 2021 G.
For OSAMA A. ELKHERENI & PARTNER CO,

OSAMA A ELKHERELI
License No. 154
ON 23/04/1405 H.




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As At 31 December 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwisc stated)

Assets

Nop- Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment (nct)
Right-of-Use Assets (net)

Total Non- Current Asscts
Current Assets

Inventories (net)

Trade Receivables (net)
Prepayments and Other Receivables
Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital

Statutory Reserve

Retained Eamings

Effect of Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition
Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Company
Non-Controlling Interests

Total Equity

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-Term Loans

Lease Liabilities

Employees' Ead of Service Benefits
Contingent Liability against Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Lisbilities

Current Portion of Long-Term Loans
Short-Term Loans

Trade Payables

Lease Liabilities

Accrued and Other Liabilities

Provision for Zakat

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

(5)
(6)

(7)
(3)
)
(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)

(25)

(25)

(14)
(©)
(16)
(25)

(14)
(14)

(6)
(15)
(18)

December December
31, 2020 31,2019
(Restated-
note no. 32}
153111 586 146 378 215
7 442 241 7938 391
160 553 827 154 316 606

47 905 769 47 598 693
40 252 232 48 402 341
14 323 186 16 051 002
37 989 409 19 606 108

8 636 253 6217 060
149 106 849 137 875 204
309 660 676 292 191 810

115 000 000 115 000 000
16 408 804 16 408 804
22 653 603 26 192 683

(25 358 702) -
128 703 705 157 601 487
- (5033 702)
128 703 705 152 567 785
43 449 850 36 590 005
7721 187 § 096 392
11304 488 9737 237

20 325 000 -

82 800 525 54423634
11691 730 9395435
53 996 583 47 145475
12 010 401 8 596 984

375 205 357 338

17 070 950 15524 273
3011 577 4 180 886
98 156 446 85 200 391
180 956 971 139 624 025
309 660 676 292 191 810

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to (33) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

L L



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Sandi Riyal unless otherwisc stated)

Revenue

Cost of Revenues

Gross Profit

Main O ting E
Selling and Distribution Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses

Expected Credit Losses Reverse /(Expense)

Other Income/(Expenses),net
Operating Profit /(Loss)

Finance costs

Unrealised Gain of Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Realised Loss of Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Net Profit (Loss) before Zakat

Zakat

Net Loss for the year
Other Comprehensive Income:

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss:

Actuarial (Loss) Gain of Employees' End of Service Benefits

Remeasurement

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year
Net Loss for the year is attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company
Non-Controlling [nterests

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year is attributable to:
Sharcholders of the Company
Non-Controlling Interests

Total comprehensive (Loss) /Income for the year

Loss per (Basic & Diluted) share based on Loss for the year

attributable to Sharcholders of the Company

Eamings per share (in Saud: Riyal)

(19)
(20)

@)
(22)

()
(23)
(24)
(10)
(10)

(18)

(17)

2020 2019
(Restated-
note no. 32)
181 512 822 164 139 844
(152 205 203) (143 502 931)
29 307 619 20 636 913
(8 771 609) (9 249 937)
(19 696 783) (33 675 829)
856 216 (1 160 148)
2134 124 5 081 303
3 829 567 (18 367 698)
(3 865 113) (4 747 552)
423 759 678 797
(40 457) -

347 756 (22 436 453)
(3 323 787) (3 589 753)
(2976 031) (26 026 206)
(563 049) 954 936
(3 539 080) (25 071 270)
(2 976 031) (20 259 566)
- (5 766 640)
(2976 031) (26 026 206)
(3 539 080) (19 353 636)
- (5 717 634)
(3 539 080) (25 071 269)
(0.26) (1.76)

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to (33) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Chairman

G

%



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joimt Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Far the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressnd (s Ssued Riyal unloss otherwise stated)

Lishilty  Auchmisble

N Share Statutery Retulned  sgaiost Nop- m :
S Capaal Reers  Pamiags  Cestlinr  Shachgers SR ol
Interests of the
Acamisitien Company
Ralance at | Jamuary 2910 115 000 000 16 408 804 45546319 & 176 955 123 633052 177639955
Other Comprehensive Loss for the year .
Net koess for the year (s previously peesesced) . - {22 346 244) . (22346 244) (3679962) (26 126 206)
Adjustments (12) . . 2 086 678 v 2086 678 (2086 678) 3
Not Lass of the yesr (restased) . . (20) 259 56) . (20 259 566) (5766 840) (26026 206)
Other comprehensive income for the vear . - 205 930 . 905 930 49006 984936
Tetal cossprehensive law for the year . - (19 353 &36) - (19 353 636) (£717634) (25071 270)
Thalance as at 31 December 2019 (restated) 115 000 009 16 408 B4 26 192 683 2 157 601 457 (S033702) 152567 RS
Other comprehensive Losy for the year
Nes hess for the year - : @ 976m1) - (2976 131) (2976 031)
Other comprehensive Loas for the vesr - -a Za— (5630497 - (563 049) ' (563 049)
Tetal Comprehensive loss for the year - - (3 539 as0) - (3 538 080) (3 839 089)

FifTeet of Avguis the Noo-Controliing Iaserests . ] e (25 358 T02) (25 358 702) SO33N2 {20325 000)
Balance as af 31 December 2029 115 D00 009 16 408 84 22 653 603 (24 388 T02) 125 703 705 . 128 202 708

The nocompanying netes from no. (1) 10 (33) are 40 integral part of these coasolidated financial stvements.

Chiel Financial Officer Vice Chairman and Managing Director __Chalrman




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

M OPERATIN 1ES
Net Profit/(Loss) before Zakat
Adjustments:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Right-of-Use Assets
Inventory Provision, No Longer Required /Formed
Reversal of Impairment Loss on Trade Receivables, Formed
Reversal of Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment
Current Cost Service of Employees’ End of Service Benefits
Unrealized Gain of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Finance Costs

Changes in:

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Prepayments and Other Receivables

Trade Payables

Accrued and Other Liabilities

Employees Benefits Paid

Cash from Operations

Finance Costs Paid

Zakat Paid

Net Cash Flows from (Used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Acquisition of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Loans and Facilities

Payments of Loans and Facilibes

Payments of Lease Liabilities

Cash flows from Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents during the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the vear

Significant non-cash transactions:

Contingent Liability against Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition — Note (25)

Actuarial Loss of Employces' End of Service Benefits remeasurement

(5)
(6)
(7N

2020 2019
(Restated)

347 756 (22 436 453)

7 067 230 6 534 429

496 150 496 150

{1739 177) 4 687 060

(1 276 966) | 160 148

- (3 340 685)

1 885 733 1971 489

{383 302) (678 797)

3 865 113 4747 552

10 262 537 (6 859 107)

1432 101 (4 268 545)

9 427 074 (17 180 610)

1 727 830 15 307 052

3413 417 (2 274 691)

1 546 678 842 868

(1 189 163) (1102 627)

26 620 474 (15 535 660)

(3 557 481) (4313 631)
(4 493 096) (3 534 597)
18 569 897 _ (23 383 888)

(13800 611) (23 067 (44)

. 15304 712

42 585 345 17 580 904

(60 585 344) (15 328 404)

(31 800 610) (5 509 832)

64 341 712 110 006 529

(48 334 468) (99 166 225)

(357 338) (340 312)

15649906 _ 10499992

2419193 (18 393 728)
6 217 060 24 610 788
— 036253 6217060
(20 325 000) .
(563 049) (954 936)

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to (33) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Chairman




FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

1. Reporting entity

1-1Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company (“the Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock
Company, registered in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial Registration numbered
1010084155 is issued from Riyadh city dated on Dhul Hijiah 4, 1411 (H) corresponding to June
17, 1991 (G). The Company was established according to Ministerial Decision No. 851 dated
Shawwal 17,141 1(H) corresponding to May 2, 1991 (G) and Ministerial Decision No.953 dated
Dhul-Qa’dah 29, 1411 (H) corresponding to June 12, 1991 (G).

1-2 The Company conducts it's business in:
Weaving fabric from artificial threads such as nylon, Cutting and custom-made the machine's
cover and goods, Manufacture the plastic in its primary forms, Manufacture artificial threads,
which includes (nylon, polyester, etc.), Manufacture the containers from plastic, Manufacture
the small bags from the plastic pursuant to an Industrial license No.1001009549 which issued
dated Safar 29,144 1(H) comresponding September 29, 2019 (H).

The company conducts it’s activities through the following branches:

Branch name Branch Commercial Date and location Activity
Registration No. of issuance
Branch of a company 1010608121 Sha'aban 11,1438 Construction
Fillingand Packing (H)- Riyadh. and building
Materials Manufacturing contracting
Company

1-3 The Company's capital is set at SR 115 000 000 (One hundred and fifteen million) divided into
11 500 000 shares , the share’s value is SR 10.

1-4 The Financial year begins on the first of January of each year and ends on December 31 of the
same year.

1-5 The head office of the Company is located at 7306,Phase - New Industrial City, PO Box 14335+
Riyadh-2483.

1-6 The attached consolidated financial statements include the financial statements for Filling and
Packing Matcrials Manufacturing Company ("Company") or ("parent company”) and its
domestic subsidiary company (is pointed to them together as the group) where doing the group
as collectively to produce and marketing the bags which are woven from liner polypropylenc
inside and outside the kingdom of Saudi Arabia and unliner from polyethylene is diluted the
density and the big size bags and strapping bands and the plastic fillers and woven bags these
are used for packing vegetables and fruits and rolls woven from polypropylene and the liners of
polyethylene and the recycling of plastic waste, Building and construction contracting.

Company name Country of Main Activity =~ Percentage of ownership

incorporation 12-31-2020 12-31-2019
FPC Kingdom of Manufacture of 100% 80%
Saudi Arabia ready-made textiles,
excluding apparel



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Branch Commercial  Date and location of

Branch name Registration No. issuance Activity
FPC Co for 1010468794 Jumada IT 13,1438 (H) Manufacture of recady-made
industry factory Riyadh. textiles except for apparel -

activity code 1392
Makamen Supply 1010499598 Rabia IT 11,1440 (H) Tailoring and sewing travel
Company for Riyadh. supplics cufting and
Trade and custom-made for tents and
Contracting sails , cutting and custom-

made airports, and the
covers of cars and fumiturc

West Makamen 4030381209 Ramadan 27,1441 (H)} Tailoring and sewing travel
CO for Tents Jeddah. supplies  cutting  and
owned by cne custom-made for tents and
person sails , cutting and custom-

made airports, and the
covers of cars and furniture

1-6-1 At the end of the first quarter of the yecar 2020 (G) the Company has announced (Filling and

Packing Materials Manufacturing Company) on the Tadwal's site dated Rajab 7, 1441 (H)
corresponding March 2, 2020 (G) about a signing convention for acquisition the whole of non-
controlling quotas in the subsidiary company where the quota of the Filling and Packing
Materials Manufacturing Company in the subsidiary company is 80% while the partner owns
(Erad investment co.) a percentage 20%, therefore, will become the subsidiary company is fully
owned for the Company (Filling and Packing Materials Manufacturing Company) and the
convention of acquisition is requiring the partner to abdicate his whole quotas which are 20%
in the subsidiary company for it's rights and liabilities to (Filling and Packing Materials
Manufacturing Company) will be in exchange for obtaining on a percentage 20% of the net
profit according to the audited financial statements at the end of each year for only ten vears
(duration of convention) till the end the financial year on 31,2029 December, The articles of
incorporation has been amended according that.

1-6-2 The impact of that convention has been presented on the consolidated financial statements on

2.

31, 2020 December (Note No 25).
N FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2-1 Accounting standards applied

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
other standards and pronouncements that are issued by SOCPA .

‘nwsc Cousohdawd Fmancxal Statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting and the concept of going concern on the historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the Consolidated Statement of financial position:
* The defined benefit obligation is recognised at the present value of future obligations using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.
e Investment at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL").

s



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

2-3 Functional and presentation currency
Thesc consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the Group’s

functional currency, unless otherwise indicated,

2-4 Basis for consolidating the consolidated financial statements
These Consolidated Financial Statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include assets, liabilities and

the results of the operations of the Company and its subsidiary, as set out in note (1). The

Company and its subsidiary are collectively referred to as the “Group™.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the

ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Specifically, the Group controls

an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee),

e Exposure to risks, and has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
and

* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that & majority of voting rights results in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee,

¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

« The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control assessing.

Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition with fair value.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of not wholly owned subsidiaries are shown
scparatcly in the consolidated statcment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial position,
respectively.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which group control until the date on which
control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method for accounting when transferring control to the group,
where:
* The cost of the acquisition is mcasured at the fair value of the specific assets acquired.
¢ The excess of the cost of acquisition plus the fair value of non-controlling interests over the
net value of the identifiable assets acquired as goodwill is recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position,
e Acquisition-related costs are recorded when incurred and included in administrative

expenses.



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date
of acquisition. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are
attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, cven
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, unrealised income and expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions are eliminated in full on consolidation. When necessary, adjustments arc made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies. The Company and its subsidiary have the same reporting periods.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, The following is donc:

De-recogmizes the assets (including the good will) and lizbilitics of the subsidiary;
De-recognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

De-recognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

Recognizes the fair value of any investment remaining;

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in the condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss;

The parent company's share in the previously listed components of other comprehensive profit
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate and required when the group
eliminates the directly related assets or liabilities.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES
3-1 New IFRS standards, amendments to standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has applied the following amendments to the standards for the first time for their

reporting periods commencing on 1 January 2020 (applicable to the group does not apply for its

work). The effect will not be significant to the financial statements. They consist of the

following:

* Amendments to JAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
(effective from January 1, 2020)
Use a consistent definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting;
Clarify the explanation of the definition of material;
Incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information.

* Amendments to IFRS 3 — Definition of a Business (Definition of business activity)
This amendment revises the definition of a business. According to feedback received by the
IASB, application of the current guidance is commonly thought to be too complex, and it
results in too many transactions qualifying as business combinations.

o  Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

¢ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - Interest rate benchmark reform
These amendments provide certain reliefs in connection with interest rate benchmark
reform. The reliefs relate to hedge accounting and have the effect that Interbank Offered
Rate (“*IBOR™) reform should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However,
any hedge ineffectivencss should continue to be recorded in the statement of profit or loss.



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Following are the new standards and amendments to standards which are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and carlier application is permitted;

however, the Group has not early adopted them in preparing these Consolidated Financial

Statements.

e [FRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective from January 1, 2021),

o Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements' on classification of liabilities,

o The sale or contribution of assets between the investor and his associate or joint venture
(amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 3). (Available for optional application / Effective date
deferred indefinitely).

3-2

APPLIED

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its
consolidated financial statements to all accounting periods presented,

3-2-1 Classification of assets and liabilities into current / non-current

Assets:
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements based on their
classification into current / noncurrent items. The asset is current when:

It is expected to be realized or there is an intention to be sold or consumed it in a
normal operating cycle, or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the financial reporting’s
period, or

Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least — twelve months after the financial reporting period.

The group classifies all other assets as non-current assets.

A liability is current when:

[t is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle, or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the financial reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the financial reporting period.

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current assets.

3-2-2 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposc of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

consist of balances with banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturities of three months or less and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any,
whose original maturity is three months or Less than the date of its creation and are
available to the Group without any restrictions. It also includes overdraft accounts that are
an integral part of the Group's cash management and are expected to be changed from
overdrafts to current accounts.

3-2-3 Inventory

Inventory is stated at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower Cost is determined
as following:



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Raw materials, consumables and spare parts: Purchase cost on a weighted average basis
Cost of purchase includes the purchase price, custom dutics, and the other taxes
otherwise, those which refundable, later, from tax authorities and the costs of
transportation and handling and other costs attributable directly to the acquisition and
deduct the trade discounts and the reductions and other similar items when determines
the cost of purchase.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs.

The nct realizable valuc consists of the estimated selling price less incremental
completion costs and an appropriate share of selling and distribution expenses. Any
decrease in the cost of inventories to the net realizable value should be recognized as an
expense in the period in which the reduction occurs. Any reversal of impairment should
be recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the reversal
oceurs.

Provision is made, where necessary, for any slow moving or defective inventory and the
cost of the inventory is recognized as an expense and recognized in the cost of revenue.

3-2-4 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, The cost of acquisition of the asset includes all
costs related to the acquisition of the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is disposal or no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are detcrmined
by comparing net disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and are recognized net of other income (expensc) in profits or losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it results in increase in the future
¢conomic benefits and can be reliably measured,

Loan financing costs are capitalized to finance the creation of qualifying assets during
the year required to complete and process the assets for the purpose.

Where significant portions of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are then accounted for as items of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of replacing an important part of the item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item if potential future economic benefits are
probable to flow to the Group and these costs can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the item being derecognized is eliminated when significant parts of the
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced over time. The Group
recognizes such items as individual assets with specific uscful lives and is depreciated
accordingly. Similarly, when performing a major examination, its cost is included in the
carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the inclusion criteria
are met. Other repair and maintenance costs are included in the profits or losses as
incurred.



FILLING AND PACKINGC MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

3-2-5

Depreciation

The cost less estimated residual value is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives of the asscts, the depreciation of some production line is made on the basis
of the amount produced during the period attributable to the amount estimate to produce
the assct during its useful live and for the remaining property and plant and cquipment,
the depreciation is made on the basis of the useful live of the asset as follows,

Buildings on leased land 33 years
Machinery and equipment 10-25 ycars
Vehicles 4 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 years
bits and pieces 7 years

Land and capital works under construction are not depreciated.

The residual value and useful lives of the asset are reviewed in case there are indications
of significant changes since the date of the last annual report and adjusted for future
impact, when necessary.

Capital works i
Capital work in progress at the end of the year includes certain assets that have been
acquired but are not ready for the intended usc. Capital work is carried at cost less any
impairment recorded in value. These assets are transferred to related asset classes and
depreciated when they are ready for use,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) acquired scparately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible asscts arc carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed o be either specific or indefinite.
Assets produced internally (excluding capitalized development costs) are not capitalized
and related expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life,
The residual values of intangible asscts with finite lives, their useful lives and
impairment indicators at the end of each financial year are reviewed for impairment if
there is an indication that the intangible asset may have been impaired.

Changes in the expected useful life or expected pattern of future economic bencfits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted
prospectively, if necessary.

Amortization expense for intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income under expenses category in
line with the function of intangible asscts,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure are likely to flow to the Group and the expenditure can
be measured reliably.

«11s



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Gains or losses ansing on derecognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the
difference between net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
asset is disposed of.

3-2-6 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the establishment of an asset are capitalized
using the capitalization rate up to the stage in which the work necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for the intended purposc is cffectively completed and are then charged
to profit or loss. In the case of specific loans, all such costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that require a substantial period of
time for its intended preparation or sale, such costs are capitalized as part of the cost of
the related asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
oceur.

3-2-7 Leases

The determination of whether the arrangements are (or its substance) is a lease based on

the substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract. An arrangement is
assessed to determination whether its performance depends on the user of assets or that the
arrangements transfer the right to use the asset even if the asset is not explicitly identified

in the arrangement.

The Group as a lcssee
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability related to the
lease contracts which the requirements of IFRS (16) apply where:

Each a rental payment is distiibuted between the liabilities and the finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit and loss over a lease term where be achieved a
static periodical commission rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
The right of use assets was amortized with the cost that involving the following:
* The amount of initial measurcment for lease liabilities,
* Any lease payments which were paid at or before the commencement date of the
contract less any received rental incentives.
¢ The costs of renewal. (if any)
The lease liabilities comprise the following net present values of payments:
* The fixed payments (including the fixed payments in its substance) less any debit
incentives.
e The variable lease payments which based on an indicator or rate, (if any)
* The amounts which expected to be paid pursuant to the guarantees of the residual
value.
e The price of exercising of the option of purchasing if a lessee sure reasonably from
exercise that option if any.
» Payments of the fincs rclated to terminate a lease contract, if the Icasc term reflects
reasonably of exercising the lessee for that option (if any).

$12%
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(A Sandi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

The payments of a lease contract are discounted by using an incremental borrowing rate
which represents the price that would pay by the lessee to borrow the necessary funds to
obtain an asset in a similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
conditions and terms,

The payments related to short-term leases and low-value leases are recognised as an
cxpensc in profit and loss. The short-term leases are the leases that have a lease period
12month or less.

Renegotiation on the lease contract's terms is made on an individual basis and contains a
large of conditions and different terms. The arrangements of the lease contracts do not
impose any pledges but the right-of-use asscts do not use as a guarantee for the purposes
of borrowing,.

G les
The determination of whether the agreements are (or its substance) is a lease based on
the substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract.
Each lease (if any) are classified as a finance lcasc or an operating lease, where the
regard of a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of a
transaction, not on the form of the contract.
A lcasc is classified as a finance lease if a lease that transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.
A lcasc is classified as an operating lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the owner ship of an underlying assct.
The lease incentives or any increase in the leas¢ contracts are included as part of the
total liability from the leasc contract and are calculated on a straight line basis over the
period of the contract. Contingent rentals are included as revenue in the period in which
they are calculated.

3-2-8 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews non-financial assets (other than inventories) to
determine whether there is any indication or circumstances that indicate an impairment
loss or reversal of impairment loss. If this indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determinc the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of the
impairment loss, if any.

When over it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
group cstimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis for allocation can be determined, the

joint assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units or otherwise distributed to

the smaller group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be determined.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the fair value of the asset or cash generating unit
less costs to sell or value in usc - whichever is higher,

* The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset generates

cash flows that arc substantially independent of the expenditure gencrated from other
assets or groups of assets,

=  When the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable

amount, the asset is considered impaired and its value is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

-13.
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3.2-9

* In assessing the valuc in usc, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using the pre-tax discount rate, reflecting current market asscssments of
the time value of money and the specific risks of assets for which future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted.

* When determining the fair value less costs to complete the sale, recent market
transactions are taken into consideration and, if such transactions can’t be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

An impairment loss is recognized directly in profits or losses unless the relevant assets
are carried at their revaluated amount. The impairment loss is treated in this case as a
revaluation decrease.
Where the impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that
the carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had the impairment loss been recognized value of assets (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. An impairment loss is recognized directly in the profits or losses
unless the relevant assets are carried at their revaluated amount. The impairment loss is
recognized in this case as an increase arising from revaluation.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangtble assets that are not available

for usc after being reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an

indication of impairment.

Fair value mggurcmcn
Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction for to scll the asset or transfer
the liability take place either:
e Through the principal market of the asset or liability, or
e Through the market most benceficial to the asset or liability in the absence of a
principal market.
The principal market or market must be the most accessible by the group.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions used by market
participants when pricing the asset or lability on the assumption that the partics in the
market act in the best economic interest,
The measurement of the fair value of a non-financial asset takes in consideration the ability
of the parties in the market to provide economic benefits by using the asset to obtain the
best benefit from it or to sell it to another party in the market for the best benefit.
The Group uses valuation techniqucs that are appropriate to the circumstances and have
sufficient data to measure fair value, maximize the use of observable data and reduce the
use of non-observable rclated data, where:
* The responsibility to supervise all important fair value measurements is the
responsibility of management, including the third level of fair values.
* The management reviews significant non-observable inputs and valuation adjustments
periodically.
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e The management evaluates the evidence obtained from a third party to support the

conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of the IFRS adopted in Saudi
Arabia, including the level in the hierarchy of fair value for which such assessments
should be classified if information is used by a third party, such as brokers' prices or
pricing services, are used to measure fair values.

The Group uses observable market data to the extent possible when measuring the fair
value of an assct or liability. The fair values are classified at different levels in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 : Inputs other than prices listed in level 1 for identical assets and habilities that
could be obscrved for the assets or liabilities other than direct or indirect ( as derivate
of the price of the adjustment)

Level 3: Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on cbservable market data
(unobservable input and inactive market)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assct or liability are at different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, the fair valuec measurement is fully classified at the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is essential for full measurement.
Transfers are recognized between the levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which the change oceurs.

3-2-10 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements
of IFRS (9) "Financial Instruments”, which defines and addresses the classification,
measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and certain
contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items. The details of the relevant
accounting policies are set out below.
Initial recognition ~ financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual of the instrument.
Initial measurement

On initial measurement, except for trade receivables that do not include a matenal
financing component, the financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are
recognized in profit or loss.

If the financial asset is not at fair value through profit or loss, the financial asset is
measured at its fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset.

Trade receivables that do not have a material financing component or which are less
than 12 months old are measured at the transaction price in accordance with IFRS (15).

Classification and subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurcment of non-derivative financial assets depends on their
classification into the following measurement categories based on the business model in
which the financial assets are managed as well as the contractual terms of cash flows:

- 15
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A) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss are measured at the end
of each reporting period without any transaction costs that the Group may incur when
selling or disposing of any financial asset in the future,
All financial assets that are not classificd as measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income and will be described below are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. This includes all other derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group is entitled to finalize financial assets that otherwise mect the
measurement requircments at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
If the Group docs so, it omits the accounting mismatch that may arise in one way or
another or significantly reduces mismatches.

B) Firapcial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
They are cither (debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income) or
(equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Financial asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at the
end of each reporting period and the transaction costs incurred by the Group are
derecognized when the asset is disposed of in the future.
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the following two conditions are met and arc not measured at fair value
through profit or loss:
v It is maintaincd within a business model that is verified by collecting contractual
cash flows and sclling financial assets. And
v" Their contractual periods are established on specific cash flow dates that represent
only payments of principal and interest on the principal of the amount outstanding,
Upon derecognition of financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprchensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss. However, the fair value gains or losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in the
case of equity instruments.

C) Firancial assets measured at amortized cost:
The financial asset should be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method if the following conditions arc met:
1) The financial asset is retained within the business model, which is intended to hold
financial asscts from the collection of contractual cash flows; and
2) The contractual terms of the financial asset on specific dates result in cash flows that
arc principal and interest payments on the principal outstanding.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include trade and other receivables.
After initial measurement, these financial asscts arc subscquently mcasured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment (if any). Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into considcration any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the cffective interest rate, Effective interest rate
amortization is included in financing revenue in profit or loss. Impairment losses arc
recognized in profit or loss.
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The method of recogmizing and presenting the profits or losses resulting from
classifying the above categories is as follows:

Measurement class Recognizing and presenting the profits or losses
Finam.:ial assets at - The following items are included in statement of profit or loss:
amortized cost * Interest income using the effective interest rate method.

»  Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses) (impairment
and reversal)

* Foreign exchange gains or losses

—  Whenthefinancialassetis derccognized (Derecognition), the

resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

- QGains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive

income except for the following items which are recognized
in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets

measurcd at amortized cost:
* Interest income using the effective interest method.
* Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses).
(Impairment and reversal)
* Foreign exchange gains or losses
- When the financial asset is de-recognized (Derecognition), |
the cumulative gain or loss in the other comprehensive income |
is reclassified to profit or loss '
- Gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income
- Dividends from these investments must be recognized as
income in profit or loss unlcss they clearly represent the
payment of part of the cost of the investment.
- The amounts rccognized in other comprchensive income are
not reclassificd to profit or loss under any circumstances.

— Qains or losses arising either from subsequent measurement or
from de-recognition are recognized in profit or loss.

Investment in  equity
instruments at fair value
through other

comprehensive income

Investment at fair value
through profit or loss

¢ Reclassification
When and only when _ an entity changes its business model in the managing of financial
assets, it must reclassify all its affected financial assets in accordance with the above
classification requirements.

» Cancellation of recognition of financial assets
The de-recognition of a financial asset (or, as appropriate, a part of a financial asset or a part
of a group of similar financial assets) (which mean its disposal from the financial position
statement) when the cash flow rights commented of the asset is done or when the financial
asset is transfer the financial assets or all its risks and benefits to another party. The difference
in carrying amount is recognized in the profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

At cach reporting date, the Group assesses the probability of objective evidence that the
financial asset measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired. Impairment arises when
one or more events occur, if the initial recognition of an asset has an impact on the estimated
futurc cash flows of a financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably
measured.

IFRS (9) requires the Group to apply 2 model to measure expected credit losses in respect of
impairment of financial assets. Credit event occurrence is not necessary to include credit
losses, Instead, using the expected credit loss model, the entity calculates the expected credit
losses and changes as of each reporting date.

The expected credit loss should be measured and made a provision to it either in the amount
equivalent to:

(a) 12 months of expected losses or

(b) Long term expected losses.

» If the credit risk of the financial instrument is not substantially increased from the
beginning, then a provision cqual to the expected loss of 12 months is created,

* In other cascs, provision should be made for long-term credit losses.

For trade receivables and other receivables, the Group has applied the simplified method in
accordance with the Standard and calculates credit losses according to credit loss forecasts
over the life of the financial assets where:

* The Group has established a matrix of provisions based on the Group's past experience
with respect to credit losses, and adjusted for future factors relating to debtors and the
economic environment.

* Impairment losses relating to trade receivables are presented separately in profit or loss.

Except for investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive income,

the book value of the asset is reduced through the use of the provision account and the

amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be depreciated

using the interest rate used to discount future cash flows to measure impairment loss. Loans

are written off with the loan-related provision when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery and all guarantees are realized or transferred to the Group.

= In respect of investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive
income, the provision for the loss of other comprehensive income accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is recognized and docs not reduce the book value of the
financial assct in the statement of financial position.

= In any case, if in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss increased or
decreased because of an event occurring after the impairment was rccorded, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
provision account. If a subsequent write-down is reversed, the reversal is recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payables and accruals amount.
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Initial measurement

Financial labilitics are initially recognized as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and as loans, advances and payables as
appropriate,

All financial liabilities arc initially measured at fair value and in the case of long-term
loans, advances and accounts payable, net of direct costs related to the transaction. (Le.
except for financial liabilities at fair value where transaction costs directly related to the
acquisition of financial liabilities are recognized dircetly in profit or loss).

Classification and subsequent measurement
A) At amortized cost

The entity must classify all financial liabilities at amortized cost and subsequently
measured, except for:

1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

2) Financial liabilities that arisc when a financial asset that is unqualified for
de-recognition is derecognized or when the method of continuing involvement is
applied (the continuing correlation method).

3) Financial guarantee contracts.

4) Obligations or commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the
market price and not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

S) The potential price {consideration) recognized by the acquirer in a business
combination that is in accordance with IFRS (3). This potential price is
subsequently measured at fair value with changes recognized in profit or loss.

All financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when the liability is derecognized through the
amortization of the effective interest rate.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into consideration any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
mcthod. Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss,

Gains or losses on financial liabilities measured at fair value (which are not part of
the overall hedging relationship) are recognized in profit or loss. Except for gains or
losses on certain financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss when the Group is required to asscss the effects of changes in credit risk
associated with liabilities in other comprehensive income.

B) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities included in this category include:

1. Liabilities held for trading.

2. Liabilities derivatives not designated as hedging instruments.

3. Liabilities designatcd at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, the Group measures financial liabilities at fair valuc and
recognizes changes in profit or loss.

Usually Gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value are
recognized in profit or loss as follows:
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1. The amount of the change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable

to changes in credit risk is recognized in other comprehensive income.

2. The residual value of the change in the fair value of the financial Lability is

recognized in profit or loss.

C) Financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial Labilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate,

Reclassification

The Group cannot reclassify any financial liability.

Derecoguition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when it is fulfill, cancelled or terminated.

When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender

on substantially different terms or when the terms of an existing obligation are

substantially modified, such a replacement or modification is treated as a

derccognition of the original financial liability while recognizing the new

obligation, The difference between the relevant book values is recognized in

profit or loss.

Set-off of financial instruments (sct-off between fimancial assets and

liabilities).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and recorded net in the

statement of financial position only when the following conditions are met:

1- The Group has a statutory legal right to set-off the amounts recognized in
assets and liabilities.

2- The intention of the Group to settle on a net basis or to recognize the asset
and settle the obligation simultaneously.

3-2-11 Revenues recognition

Revenues arising from contracts are recognized and measured in accordance with

the requirements of IFRS (15), unless they arc within the scope of other standards.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract

with the customer, with the exception of amounts collected on behalf of other

parties. The Group recognizes revenue when transferring control over the products

or services provided to the customer.

IFRS 15 is applied either with full retrospective or amended application where:

The Group applied the Intemational Financial Reporting Standard in its financial

statements starting from 1 January 2019 in a way that asscsses the cumulative

effect, and the Group did not amend its financial statements for the presented

comparative periods in accordance with the exemptions available.

Where the Group records revenue from contracts with clients based on the

following five steps:

a) Determining the contract with the client: A contract is an agreement between
two or more partics that results in mandatory rights and obligations and
clarifies the criteria that must be met for each contract.
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b) Defining performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise to the customer according to the contract in order to transport goods or
provide services to the customer.

¢) Determining the transaction price; The transaction price is the price expected
from the Group in exchange for the transfer of goods or services agreed upon
with the customer, excluding the amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

d) Distributing the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:
For a contract that contains more than one performance obligation, the Group
distributes the transaction price to each performance obligation by an estimated
amount of the price expected to be collected from the goods or services in
exchange for the performance of the performance obligation.

¢) Revenue is recognized when (or when) the Group fulfills the performance
obligation.

- The Group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over the term

of the contract if it fulfills any of the following requircments:

a) The client obtains the benefits resulting from the performance of the Group and
the consumption of those benefits at the same time, or

b) The Group's performance leads to the creation or improvement of an asset that is
under the customer’s control at the time of improvement or creation, or

¢) The Group's performance of the obligation is not originally for other uses of the
Group, and the Group has the right to collect the amount for the completed
performance to date that is enforceable.

- For performance obligations where one of the above conditions arc not met, revenue
is recognized at the time the performance obligation is satisfied,

- When the Group fulfills a performance obligation by providing the promised goods
or services, then the Group creates an asset based on the contract in exchange for the
price it received as a result of the performance. If the amount of the billed price to
the customer exceeds the amount of the listed revenues, this increases the
commitment of the contract,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the price received or receivable, taking into
account the contractual payment terms specified.

= Revenue is included in profit or loss to the extent of the expected flow of economic
benefits to the Group, with revenucs and costs - where applicable - being able to be
measured reliably,

= The Group's revenue is represented in:
* Revenue from Products Sales:
* Revenue resulting from the sale of goods is recognized and an invoice is

issued when all of the following conditions are met:

¥ Transferring the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to
the buyer.

v The Group does not retain the right to continuous administrative
intervention to the degree that is usually associated with ownership nor
with actual control over the sold goods.
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v The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

v" It is probable that the cconomic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group.

v The costs incurred or to be borne by the Group in connection with the
transaction can be measured in a reliable manner.

* The Group does not have any loyalty programs under which points are
awarded to customers, and therefore no deferred revenue is recognized for
the items sold.

* Elements of financing
The Group does not currently have or expeets at the present time any
contracts with clients for routine sales or products where the period between
transferring the promised products or services to the customer and paying
the customer exceeds one year. As a result, the Group is not currently
making an adjustment to any transaction rates regarding the time value of
money. However, if any such situation is identified, the relevant amounts are
remeasured in order to adjust the time value of the funds.

*  Warranty obligations
The Group provides guarantees regarding the sold goods when certain terms
and conditions are applied, and accordingly the Group is subject to the
requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standard No. 15 with
regard to deferring the recognition of revenues and recording contract
obligations.

3-2-12 Costs Of Revenue

= All expenditures gre recognized on an accrual basis, and operating costs are
recognized on the basis of historical cost, Production costs and direct
manufacturing expenses are classified as cost of sales. This includes raw
materials, direct labor and other related indirect costs, Other costs such as
selling costs are recorded as sclling and distribution expenses, while all other
remaining expenses arc shown as general and administrative cxpenses.

3-2-13 Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses include
direct and indirect costs that are not specifically considered part of the cost of
TCVenues .

Selling and marketing cxpenses in those expenscs arising from the Group's
underlying sales and marketing functions .

All expenses except for financial charges, amortization, depreciation and
impairment losses are classified as general and administrative expenses ,

Other joint expenses are allocated between the cost of revenue, selling and
marketing costs and general and administrative expenses on a consistent basis
where necessary.
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3-2-14 Income Tax and Zakat
Zakat
~ Zakat is calculated in accordance with zakat regulations issued by the General
Authority for Zakat and Income in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("the Authority” .

- Zakat is charged to the profit or loss.

= Any additional obligations and settlement of adjustments resulting from the Zakat,
if any, that may become due upon completion of the assessment are recorded in the
same fiscal year in which the zakat asscssment is recognized.

Withholding tax

The Group deducts taxcs on certain transactions with non-resident entities in Saudi

Arabia as required in accordance with the applicable tax regulations in the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The withholding tax relating to foreign payments is

recognized as a liability

Transaction tax
1- Income, expenses and assets are recognized net of transaction tax (including VAT),
except for:

» Where the transaction tax incurred in the purchase of an asset or service is not
recoverable from the tax authority, in which case the transaction tax is
recognized as part of the cost of the asset or as part of the expense, where
applicables

« Accounts receivable and payables that have been included with the transaction
tax amount,

2- The net amount of the transaction tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax
authority is included as part of the receivables or payables in the statcment of
financial position.

3-2-15 i ctions and balan
Foreign currency transactions arc translated into Saudi Riyals (functional currency) at
the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the financial statements. Gains and losses
arising from changes in exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that arc measured at the historical cost of a foreign currency are
retranslated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions and are not
subsequently adjusted. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date that the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on the translation of non-monctary items
measured at fair value is accounted for in accordance with the recognition of profit or
loss from changes in the fair value of the related item.

3-2-16 Provisions
A. Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation (legal or constructive)

arising from a past event and there is a possibility that the Group will be required to
settle this obligation through cash flows from outside the Group that reflect economic
benefits and a significant estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the Group expects to repay some or all of the provision - for example - under
an insurance contract, the payment is recognized as an independent asset but only
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when the payment is actually confirmed. The expense for the provision is presented
in to profit or loss after any payment.

If the effect of the time value of money is significant, the provisions is determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at the current discount rate before the
tax that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
related to the obligation. When the discount is used, the excess of the provision is
recognized as a result of the passage of time as the cost of financing in the profit or
loss.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If a flow of required external resources with economic benefits to settle the
obligation is no longer probable, the provision is reversed.

Cessation of operations costs (assets related to the removal of assets)
A provision to suspend operations is recognized when the Group is responsible for
the restoration or rchabilitation of the land. The degree of suspension of the required
operations and related costs depends on the requirements of current laws and
regulations,
Costs included and included in the provision include all expected cessation liabilities
over the life of the assets, The provision for suspending operations is discounted to
its present value and capitalized as part of the assets under property, plant and
equipment and is amortized over the life of the asset,
Adjustments to the estimated amount and time of cash flows to discontinue
operations are normal in light of the significant judgments and estimates involved.
These adjustments are recorded as an increase in liabilities offset by an increase in
the related assets. Factors affecting these adjustments include:

* Technology development.

= Regulatory requirements and environmental management strategies.

* Changes in the estimated threshold and expected costs of activities, including

the effects of inflation.
= Changes in cconomic sustainability.

3-2-17
A. Defined Benefit Programs

The Group provides a defined benefit plan to its employees in accordance with the
Saudi Labor Law. The Group's net liability in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating and deducting the amount of futurc benefits acquired by the
employec in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligations are
calculated annually by a qualificd actuary by the projected unit credit method, which
takes into account the provisions of the Saudi Labor Law and Group policy.

The defined bencfit obligation is periodically re-measured by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by deducting estimated future cash outflows and due to the
lack of a decp market for government bonds / skunk or corporate bonds / skunk in
Saudi Arabia, the discount rate is determined by reference to the Dow Jones Skunk
Dividend. The net commission cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the program assets.
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The defined benefit obligation costs are calculated using actuarially defined
retirement costs at the end of the previous year, adjusted for significant market
fluctuations and any significant one-time cvents such as program adjustment,
manpower reduction and reimbursement. In the absence of such significant market
fluctuations and one-time events, the actuarial liability is extended based on the
assumptions at the beginning of the year. If there are significant changes in
assumptions or arrangements during the initial period, they are considered for re-
measurement of these liabilities and related costs.

Re-measurement of the net liability of defined benefit schemes consisting of actuarial
gains and losses is recognized directly in other comprehensive income. The Group
calculates net interest by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined
benefit obligation or asset. Net interest expensc and other related expenses are
recognized in the profit or loss programs as defined in the profit or loss.

When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is
reduced, the resulting change in benefit relating to the past service, profit or loss
from the immediate reduction in profit or loss is recognized.

B. Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits to employces relating to wages and salaries
including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, sick lcave and travel tickets during the
period in which the service is provided, as well as the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid for that service on the basis that the related service may
Performed. Recognized liabilities relating to short-term employee benefits are measured
at the amount that is not deductible and is expected to be paid for the service rendered.

C. Employee benefits after end of service

The Group pays retirement contributions to its Saudi employees to the Social Insurance
Institution and rcpresents a specific contribution plan and the payments are considered as
expenses when incurred.

3-2-18 Liabilities and contingent assets
A. Contingent liabilitics are obligations that are likely to arise from past events and are

confirmed to exist only through the occurrence or absence of one or more uncertain
future events that are not within the overall control of the Group. or an existing
obligation that is not proved because it is unlikely that there will be a need for the flow
of resources to settle the obligation. In the event that the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably enough, the Group does not demonstrate the contingent
liabilities but discloses them in the financial statements.

The potential assets arc not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed
when economic benefits are probable.

3-2-19 Earnings per Share

B.

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the
Group's shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year.
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- Reduced carmnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the
group's shareholders (after adjusting for interest on convertible preference shares) by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the
welghted average number of ordinary shares that will be issued when converting all
potential reduced ordinary shares into shares normal.

= Since the Group does not have any convertible shares, the basic eamings per share
equals the reduced carnings per share.

3-2-20 Cash dividends of the Group's Shareholders
= The Company recognizes the obligations related to the payment of cash dividends to
the Company's shareholders when the distribution is approved

In accordance with the Companies Law in Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved by
the shareholders.

~ Initial dividends, if any, are recorded upon approval by the Board of Directors. The
amount of the consideration is recognized directly in equity.

3-2-21 Prepaid expenses
Prepaid long-term expenses (if any) are recognized at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

3-2-22 Segments Reports
— The business segment is a group of assets, operations, or facilities:

1) Conducts its business in commercial activities through which it is possible to
generate revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses related to
transactions with other components of the Group;

2) The results of its operations arc analyzed on an ongoing basis by the Chief
Operating Officer in order to make decisions related to resource allocation and
performance ¢valuation; and

3) On which accurate information is available separately.

- The geographical segment provides products or services within a specific cconomic
environment that is exposed to risks and returns that differ from opcrating sectors in
other economic environments.

4  SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities disclosed
and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates may result in results that may require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities that will be affected in future periods.

These estimates and assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances and are used to judge the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are difficult to obtain from other sources. Core cstimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. An audit of the accounting estimates is recorded in the period in
which the estimates are revised or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revised
estimates affect current and future perieds.
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions have been made which have a
material impact on the financial statements as following:

4-1 Judgments
Compliance with performance obligations
- The Group has to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether

performance obligations have been met over time or at a specific time in order to
determine the appropriate method of income recognition. The Group assessed this based
on the sales and purchasc agrecments it had entered into with the customers and the
provisions of the relevant laws and regulations .

The Group has chosen to apply the input method in the transaction price distribution for
the performance obligation where the revenue is recognized based on the Group's
cfforts to mect the performance obligation, providing the best reference to the income
actually camned .

Determine transaction prices

The Group is required to set transaction prices in relation to each of its contracts with
customers. In making such a judgment, the Group evaluates the impact of any variable
price in the contract as a result of discounts or fines, the presence of any significant
financing component in the contract and any non-monetary price in the contract.

Consolidation of subsidiaries

The Group evaluated all investec companics to sec if they excrcise control over them in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard No. (10) “Consolidated
Financial Statcments”, The Group evaluated, among other things, the stake it owns, the
applicable contractual arrangements, their capacity, and the limits of their participation
in the related activitics. In investee companies, to determine whether they exercise
control over them or not.

Coronavirus (COVID-19)

The Group has reviewed the main sources of the uncertainty estimates disclosed in the
recent consolidated financial statements in the context of the Coronavirus (Covid-19)
epidemic. Management believes that, other than expected credit losses of financial
assets, the impairment loss for non-financial assets and all sources for other uncertainty
estimates remain the same as those disclosed in the annual consolidated financial
statements. Management will continue to monitor the situation and any required
changes will be reflected in the future reporting period - note (30).

4-2 Estimates and assumptions
Defined Benefit Programs

The cost of the defined benefit programs and the present value of the obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation includes many different
assumptions that differ from actual developments in the future. This includes the
determination of discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and the rate of
movement of staff. As a result of the complexity and long-term nature of the valuation
process, the commitment of specific benefits is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are examined at the reporting date. The most commonly
used measurement cniteria are the discount rate and the future salary increase.
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When determining the appropriate discount rate, management relics on market yicld on
high quality corporate bonds. Future salary increases depend on future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion, supply and demand in the employment market. The mortality rate
is based on the mortality tables available for specific countries. The extrapolation of
mortality tables may change over time in response to population changes. Further
details on staff benefit obligations are provided in the clarification (14).

Expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are measured as financial assets measured at amortized cost and
requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior.
There are a number of important provisions required in the application of accounting
standards
= Define criteria for substantial increase in credit risk;
= Selecting appropriate formats and assumptions to measure expected credit losses;
= Determine the number and relative weight of future assumptions for each type of
product and market

- Create a pool of potential financial assets to measure air credit losses,

Productive useful life of property, equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives of property, equipment and investment
properties for depreciation. This estimate is determined afier taking into account the
expected period of use of the asset and the natural damage, The management examines the
estimated useful lives and the method of depreciation periodically to ensure that the
method and duration of depreciation are consistent with the expected model of the
economic benefits of these assets.and changes in depreciation expense are adjusted in
current and future periods, if any,

Impairment of non-financial assets.

The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there are indications of impairment of
the non-financial assets at cach reporting date, Non-financial assets are sclected to
determine impairment in the event of indications that the carrying amounts cannot be
recovered .

When the value in use is calculated, the management estimates the future cash flows of the
asset or unit of cash and sclects the appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value
of these cash flows.

Going concern

The management of the Group has assessed its ability to continue on the basis of the going
concern and has concluded that it has the resources to continue its activity in the
foreseeable future. In addition, management is not aware of any material uncertainty that
may cast doubt on the Group's ability to continue in accordance with the going concern.
Consequently, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the going
concem.
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5 PROPERTY. PLANT & EQUIPMENT (pe)

5-1 PROFERTY. VLANT & EQUIPMENT
Buildings & Furnitare,
Comstruction  Michinery Leasehold Fixtures & Cuplaad
& Vebickes Tools Works ia Total
on Lessed Equipment Improvements Office Progres
T Fquipment

Cost:
Al January 1, 2000 36 500 740 252 832 691 11332068 3537168 B 606 108 154 774 9 500 748 322714 5%
Additions during (e year . 1654310 323236 281 000 52955 iz 210 11450823 12 800 604

' during the yeur - (7 290 265) . . ‘ . - (7 290 265)
Tramsfer from Capizal woeks s 34 400 12513423 RO 614 - Iar 45270 (13046 149) é
progress e e
At December 31, 2020 36 535 140 259 760 459 11735968 3818168 9 @1 500 438274 TS 424 329224913
Accumulated Deprecistion:
Al January 1, 2000 25 780 9238 140 066 706 186 638 2 650 563 T 644 529 7015 . 176 336 379
Doprecistion for the yoar | 161 054 4301 098 344 726 6356 A58 135 5120 - T2
Accunusisted Depreciation of . (7 290 252) . . 3 - (7 290 262)
daspasals s 2 -
At December 31, 2020 %2022 137 577 542 §31 364 1997419 5 002 865 62135 - 176 113 347
Net book value:
At December 31, 2020 9593118 122 182917 11 204 604 £20 749 1028635 376139 TONS424 153111586
Ar December 31, 2019 10 719 812 112 %16 285 11 145430 836 o085 1961 §79 347 759 9 500 745 146 378 215

= Major of Property , Plant, and Equipment are pledge to The Sasudi Industrial Development Fund (SIDF) opposite the reccived Joans (Note No. 14).

= Property, Plant, und Equipment &s of 31 December 2020 inclodes assets which fully depeeciated and still work, costing smounting to SR 79 283 491,



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Capital works in progress represented in the following:

December31,  December 31,
2020 2019
Machinery and Equipment 6 066 187 2486761
Leaschold Improvements 583 449 610125
LC and Suppliers Down Payments 1 255 788 6131294
Other - 272 565
7 905 424 9 500 745

2019

5 748 839
101 576
684 014

2020
Cost of Revenues 6341 319
Selling and Distribution Expenses 156 575
General and Administrative Expenses 569 336
7 067 230

6 534 429
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5-2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EOUIPMENT
Furniture,
Buildings & Capital
Coustructions  Mivchivery & Leaschald Vohicles  Totures & Tooks Works in Total
on Losoed b Equipment Improvements Office Progress
Fquipment

At Jassary 1, 2019 36457 350 200 177 202 1960238 2995238 § 265 020 65025478 314920 566
Additions daring the yesr 31350 4212490 5 686 924 620 035 65443 354774 10 649 402 21002 418
Disposals during the year > (17356 615) . (78 105) 5219) ¥ : (17 439 939
Impairment reversal . 3 340 685 . . - - . 3330 685
Adyustments X - 9116) . 2 (9 116)
o from Capital works : 62 509 220 3684 906 . (66 194 135) .
AtDecomber31,2009 36 500 748 252 882 991 11332068 3557168 W66 108 384774 Y508 T4S 322714 504
At Jamary 1, 2019 24611 268 137 605 633 6256 2453078 7264 594 . 171 940 829
Deprecistion for the yesr 1 169 660 4516 165 180 382 278 559 185 618 7015 6534 429
:;"".'"““"“"D""“‘““’“ . (2 0S5 092) . (78 104) (2081) . . (2138 247)
Adijustments . = g ” ey . - 3632
At Docember 31, 2019 15780 923 140 066 706 W6638 2650563 7 644 529 7015 ~ 176 336 379
Net book valwe:

‘At December 31, 2019 10 719 812 112816385 11 145 430 86 605 1579 MTT SSMOT4S 14637215
At December 31, 2018 11 886 122 62 571 569 1953982 542 160 1000 426 . 65025478 142970737

= Major of Property , Plast, and Equipment are pledged to The Saudi Industrial Development Fund (SIDF) opposite the received losns.(Note No.14).

= Property , Plant, and Equipment as of 31 December 2019 includes sssets which fully depreciated and still work | costing smounting to SR 85 203 847
The Group has obtuined approval to release the mortgage from The Saudi Industrial Development Fund (SIDF) for selling the mackinery of production line

“FFS" Accordingly, the Board of Directors decided In its meeting, dated in 16 Apeil 2019 selling it, smounting SR 15 297 619,
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Capital works in progress represented in the following:

December December
31,2019 31,2018
Machinery and Equipment 2 486 761 62 509 229
Leaschold Improvements 610125 2516249
LC and Suppliers Down Payments 6131294 -
Other 272 565 -
9 500 745 65 025 478
Equipm h a
2020 2019
Cost of Revenues 5748 839 5768 018
Selling and Distribution Expenses 101 576 473 767
General and Administrative Expenses 684 014 26 486
6 534 429 6 268 271

6 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (net)

The Group leases two Lands from the Saudi Authority for Industrial Cities and Technology
Zones, “Modon" in the second industrial city in Riyadh, one of them is the company’s factory
and its subsidiary, and other which is a residential building in the city. Contracts end on
9/6/2035G. Contracts are renewable after the approvals of the parties,

December December

Cost: 31, 2020 31,2019
As at the beginning of the year 9 426 841 9 426 341
Additions during the year - -

9 426 841 9 426 841
Accumulated amortization:
As at the beginning of the year 1 488 450 992 300
Amortization of the year — (Included in the cost of revenue} 496 150 496 150

1984 600 1488 450

7 442 241 7 938 391

The lizbilities and deferred financing cxpenses resulting from these contracts are as follows:

31 December 2020

Total
Liabilities from lease contracts 780 024 10 920 336 11 700 360
Deferred financing expenses (404 819) (3 199 149) (3 603 968)
375 205 7721 187 8 096 392
31 December 2019
Cu t Non-cu
Liabilities from lease contracts 780 024 11 700 360 12 480 384
Deferred financing expenses (422 686) (3 603 968) (4 026 654)
357 338 8 096 392 8 453 730

432
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The mipimum future lecase payments (lcase liabilities) as at the date of the consolidated
financial position, in total , arc as follows:

minimum
Year future lease
ayments
2021 780 024
2022 780 024
2023 780 024
After 2023 9 360 288
11 700 360
7 INVENTORIES (net)
Note  December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Raw material 19 203 797 21 869 393
Work In Progress 10 851 439 0 684 924
Finished goods 12 858 747 13 497 969
Spare parts 6 842 902 6 501 662
Materials and other supplies 2550 841 2364 972
Letters of Credit 207 962 118 869
52 605 688 54 037 789
Less: Allowance for slow moving items  (7-1) (4 699 919) (6 439 096)
47 905 769 47 598 693
7-1 The movement of the allowance for slow moving items is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2020
At the beginning of the year 6439 096 1 752 036
Formed during the year 190 646 4 687 060
No longer requires, during the year (1 929 823) .
4699919 6 439 096
8 TRADE RECEIVABLES (net)
Note ____..,Dece-;ber 31 December 31,
Trade receivables 43 167 652 52 594 727
Less
Impairment loss (8-3) (2 915 420) (4 192 386)
40252232 48 402 341
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8-1 As of December 31, 2020, trade receivables impaired with amounting of SR 2 915 420
(2019:SR 4 192 386).the impairment loss on trade receivables was calculated according
to the expected credit loss in line with the requirements of IFRS 9,

8-2 Trade receivables include amount of SR 22 053 904 (2019: SR 40 464 494) which not
impaired, and override their duc date more than the normal collection cycle, but not
impaired. The Group's management believes that these amounts are fully collectible
based on the previous payment behaviors and a comprehensive analysis of the credit risk
of the customer, including the basic credit ratings of the customer, if available.

8-3 The movement of the impainment loss is as follows:

December 31,  December 3],

2020 2019
At the beginning of the year 4192 386 3032 238
Impairment for the year - 1160 148
Utilized during the year (420 750) -
Impairment loss, no longer requires (856 216) -
2915420 4192 386
8-4 The aging of trade receivables as at the date of the financial statements were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Not due 18 198 328 7937 847
Till 2 months 14 105 601 23 785 839
From 2 months to 3 months 8 236 604 7836093
From 3 months to one year 1 748 644 11533357
More than one year 878 475 1 501 591
43 167 652 52 594 727

9 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Accrued bonus & advance payments to suppliers 9515875 9354 794
Prepaid expenses 4035 997 4 867 688
Employee deposits 771 314 1323 789
Value added tax - 496 917
Other - 7815

14 323 186 16 051 003
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10 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 19 606 108 21 179 811
Additions for the year 60 585 344 15 328 404
Disposal for the year (42 585 345) (17 580 904)
Unrealised Gain of Investments at fair value through
4
b T 23 759 678 797
Realised Loss of Investments at fair value through
Profit or Loss froasn ]
37 989 409 19 606 108

The balance of investments as of Dceember 31, 2020 is mainly represented in two
investment portfolios managed by one of the local financial companies, where investment is
in instruments of cash and trading market. The Group has classified these investments
through profit and loss according to fair value. Unrealised profits in 2020 amounted to SR
423 759 (2019: SR 678 797).

During the year 2019, the Group acquires shares of Saudi companies, and when disposed it
during the year 2020, resulted loss amounted SR 40 457, which was presented in the

statement of Profit or Loss.

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Cash at banks — current accounts 8 510 209 6017958
Cash on hand 126 044 199 102
8 636 253 6 217 060

12 SHARE CAPITAL:

On December 31, 2020, the Company’s capital was determined at SR 115 000 000
(2019: SR 115 000 000), divided into 11 500 000 shares (2019: 11 500 000 shares), the
valuc of cach is SR 10, fully paid.

13 STATUTORY RESERVE:

[n accordance with the Regulations for the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company's
Articles of Association, the Company shall transfer 10% of the net profit for the year to
statutory reserve until such reserve reaches 30% of its capital.

The statutory reserve in the consolidated financial statements is related to the parent
Company. This reserve is not available for distibution to shareholders.
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14 LOANS AND FACILITIES:

ing information reflects the contractual terms of the group's loans, w ar

measured at amortized cost:

Note December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan ~ (14-1) 36 454 080 25 860 440
Bank loans & facilities (14-2) 72 684 083 67 270 475
Total 109 138 163 93130915

14-1 Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan:

During 2008, the parent Company signed an agreement with the Saudi Industrial
Development Fund, in total amounting SR 38.3 million to finance the expansion of
the factory, through the purchase of production lines for the manufacturing of plastic
cement bags and the expansion of the large bags division and container liner
manufacturing machines.,

During 2018, the subsidiary Company signed an agreement with the Saudi Industrial
Development Fund, in total amounting SR 35.3 million to guarantee the mortgage of
the factory assets - Note No. (5) - in order to finance the purchase of the factory's
production lines, and the details of loan is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Total granted loan 74 807 000 64 712 688
Paid from the loan (36 607 000) (36 607 000)
Remaining of granted loan 38 200 000 28 105 688
Prepaid administrative fees (1 745 920) (2 245 248)
Net balance at the end of the year 36 454 080 25 860 440
Short-term loans 5941 730 3 645 435
Long —term loans 30512 350 22 215 005

= The administrative fees paid in advance represent in amounts paid on the loan granted
by the Saudi Industrial Development Fund and are amortized over the periods of the
loan repayment years. Amortization expenses charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year 2020 amounted to SR 499 328 (2019: SR 309 703).

= The Group charged additional expenses by the Saudi Industrial Development Fund
during the term of the loan, which are project follow-up expenses, and are charged to
the statement of profits or losses on an accrual basis, Expenses charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the year 2020 amounted to SR 660 668(2019: SR 668 378)
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14-2 Bank Loans:
December 31,  December 31,
2020 2019
Short tcrm loans 59 746 583 52 895475
Long term loans 12 937 500 14 375 000
72 684 083 o 67 270 475
Riyadh Bank

At April 9, 2017, the Group signed an Islamic finance agreement with Riyadh Bank,
amounting to SR 49 million, for the purpose of partial finance of a project to produce one
of the manufacturing products of the subsidiary that was established during 2017 for this
purpose.

At March 28, 2018, the Islamic finance agreement was renewed and the finance limit
increased to SR 72 million, in July 19, 2018, the group reduced the value of the financing
by canceling the short-term Temporary loan SR 21 million, to be the finance limit to SR
51 million.

At March 10, 2019, the group raised the value of the finance by increasing the long-term
facilities by SR 15 million and amending the credit limits for short-term facilities to bring
the total of the short-term facilities to SR 25 million, and the finance limit is SR 66 million,
noting that this finance 1s guaranteed by signing a bond for an order. From the group total
financing amount, at April 9, 2020, the Group renewed the short-term facilities in the
amount of SR 25 million, which will be ended at April 9, 2021.

The utilized amounts of this agreement reached the following until December 31, 2020:-

1- SR 465 000 in the form of letters of guarantee,

2- SR 33.7 million in the form of long-term Islamic murabaha loans (the short - term loans
of it is SR 5.8 million and the long — term loans is SR 27.9 million)

3-SR 12,6 million in the form of short-term Islamic murabaha loans.

4- SR 8.7 million Saudi riyals in the form of letters of credit.

Bank Albilad
At September 16, 2018, The Group signed a credit facility in line with Islamic Sharia with

Bank Albilad ,amounting SR 30 million, With a purpose of obtaining a short-term Islamic
murabaha loan to finance the working capital of the Company and its subsidiary. The
Group renewed the facility contract at April 27, 2020.

As of December 31, 2020, the utilized amount of these facilities amounted to SR 26.4
million as an Islamic short-term murabaha loan (the current part), and SR 7.6 million in the
form of documentary credits, and this finance was obtained with the guarantee of a
promissory note in favor of Bank Albilad.
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14-3 Loans & facilities presentation in the statement of financial position:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Saudl lndustnal Developmenl F\md Luan 30 512350 22215005
Bank Loans 12 937 500 14 375 000
43 449 850 36 590 005
The current portion of long-term loans
Saudi Industrial Development Fund Loan 5941 730 3 645 435
Bank Loans 5750 000 5750000
11 691 730 9 395 435
Short term loans
Bank Loans 53 996 583 47 145 475
109 138 163 93 130 915
15 ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES:
December 31,  December 31,
2020 2019
Accrued expenses 8391 081 7 045 856
Advanced payment from receivables 2153 482 1 395 547
Accrued discounts to receivables - 1345199
Accrued dividends 5151 746 5152118
Value added tax 1 081 201 168 236
Other 293 440 417317
17 070 950 15524273

* The dividends not claimed by the sharcholders for the years from 2003 to 2007 amounted to SR
5 151 746 as at December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019: SR 5,152,118).

16 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

— The group operates a defined benefit plan (as defined in IAS 19) that provides a total

remuneration when an employee leaves service in the Group, in line with the current
labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The amount of entitlement is calculated according to the labor laws in the Kingdom and
it is based on years of service and salary at the date of departure, Thercfore the plan and
its liabilities are more sensitive to changes in future salary increases, future withdrawal
rates and the discount rate used in assessing liabilities.

The Group is not required to finance the plan, and so the Group has chosen to fulfill the
payment of the benefits when they are due.

The plan's liabilities were evaluated using the projected unit credit method in accordance
with the requirements of International Accounting Standard No. (19). Since the amount
and timing of futurc bencfits receivable is not currently known, assumptions have been
made to place a value for liabilitics related to past service, and separately for liabilities
related to cost of accrual. In the future, these assumptions were derived using
methodologies that are consistent with the requirements of 1AS 19,
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= Any changes in the assumptions over time reflect changes in financial, economic and
demographic conditions. When future experiences do not match the applicable
assumptions, that change is included in the statement of other comprehensive income in

future financial years.
16-1 The movement in the net defined benefits obligation:
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Balance at 1 January 9737238 9 389 380
Add: charged to profit or loss statement
Current service cost 1 885733 1 971 499
Interest cost 307 632 433 921
2 193 365 2405 420
Add: charged to OCI statement:
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 563 049 (954 936)
Cash flow:
Paid benefits (1 189 163) (1 102 627)
Balance at 31 December 11 304 488 9737 237
The current service cost has been charged as follows:
2020 2019
Cost of revenues 1277 404 1276 672
Selling and distribution expenses 165 496 236 737
General and administrative expenses 442833 458 090
1 885733 1971499

16-2 Actuarial Assumptions:
The assessment of the defined benefit plan of the employees' end of service benefits

plan was prepared by an actvarial cxpert at the Group using the following key

assumptions:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019

Discount rate %3.17-2,97% %3.079
The expected rate of salary increase %4.5 %A4.5
Retirement rate for males (per year) 60 60
Retirement rate for females (per yeur) 55 55
Avcrage cmployment turmnover (employee Moderate%12 Moderate%12
turnover)
Mortality rate AM9Y2 Ultimate AM92 Ultimate
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16 -3 Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted key
assumptions is:

2020 2019

Changesin  Changesin Percentage Changes in  Percentage

assumptions  liability of change liability of change
Discount %1+ 11,062,397  %2.14- 9514919  %2.28.
rate %]1- 13,225,890  %17.00+ 11,357,414  %16.64+
Salaries %1+ 13,259,248  17.29+% 11,387,340 %16.95+
inflation Yel- 11,013,675  %2.57- 9,472,057 %2.72-
Turnover Yol + 11,853,190  %4.85+ 10,183,608  %4.58+
rate %l- 12,283,299  %8.66+ 10,558,851  8.44+%
Death 120% 12,047,933  %6.58+ 10,354,172 %6.34+
rate %80 12,064,695  %6.72+ 10,369,257  +%6.49

The sensitivity analysis above are based on no change in the assumption with all other
assumptions. In practice, this is unlikely to happen, as changes in some assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions, the same method is applied (the present value of the
defined benefits calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) when calculating the defined benefits recognized in the statement of

financial position.
17 EARNING PER SHARE :
December 31,
December 2019
31,2020 (Adjusted Note
Net loss for th butable to the sharehold f th
Vet loss for the year attni etothes olders of the
parent Company {2 976 031) (20 259 567)
Weighted average of shares 11 500 000 11 500 000
Basic share loss from net loss for the year (0,26) (1,76)

There is no liability convertible to equity instruments, so the diluted profit /loss per share is
not different from the basic profit /loss per share.

18 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT:

18-1 Zakat Calculation:
December 31, 2020

Net Profit Adjusting
Net profit before zakat 347 756
Total adjustments for net profit 1511672
Adjusted net profit 1859 428
Co nents of Zakat base
Items subject to zakat base 296 050 229
Items deducted from zakat basc (167 396 740)
Zakat base 128 653 489
Zakat

3323787
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18-2 Zakat provision movements:
December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Opening balance 4 180 886 4125 730
Formed during the year 3323787 4 180 886
Adjustments - (591 133)
Utilized during the year (4 493 096) (3 534597)

3011577 4 180 886

18-3 Zakat Status:
Years from 2013 to 2016
During the year 2019 , General Authority of Zakat and Tax issued the Zakat assessment for

the years from 2013 to 2016, resulting zakat differences duc from the Company, amounting
to SR 116 491, and the Company paid it during 2019,

-
During the year 2020, General Authority of Zakat and Tax issued a zakat assessment,
resulting zakat differences duc from the Company amounting to SR 274 485, and the
company paid it.
Year 2019
The company submitted the zakat declaration bascd on its view and obtained a certificate
from the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) valid until 30 April 2021, the
Company has not received any zakat assessments from the General Authority of Zakat and
Tax for yet.

FPC (Subsidiary)

Years before 2019
The Company submitted the zakat declaration for this years and obtained a certificate, the
Company has not reccived any zakat assessments related these ycars yet.

Year 2019
The Company submitted the zakat declaration based on its view and obtained a certificate
from the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) valid until 30 April 2021, the
Company has not received any zakat assessments from the General Authority of Zakat and
Tax for yet.

roup consoli t decla
During the year 2020, the group obtained the approval of General Authority of Zakat and
Tax to file a consolidated zakat declaration for the parent Company and its subsidiary

Company.
19 REVENUES
2020 2019
Revenues of sale of filling and packing products 146 151 231 151218918
Revenues of sale of textile products 35 361 591 12 920 926

181 512 822 164 139 844
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20 COST OF REVENUES

Used material

Salarics

Depreciation and amortization

Other operation expenses

Changes in finished goods and working in progress inventories

21 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Transportation

Advertising

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Other

22 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs
Professional fees
Board of Directors remuneration

Depreciation

Transportation

Rent

Security

Research and development expenditure
Insurance

Unused capacity *

Other

2020 2019
101 610410 99 388 192
26 805 030 26 495 370
6 807 920 5826 573
17 502 960 20 160 72]
(521 117) (8 367 925)
152 205 203 143 502 931
2020 2019
3444618 3919806
3512140 3139970
390 752 987 784
156 575 101 576
1 267 524 1 100 801
8771 609 9 249 937
2020 2019
11071 351 12 838 083
891 370 | 548 427
676 044 510 547
1 657 675 386 017
296 915 44 999
130 817 145315
211 200 201 600
221 505 171 022
212 839 132 322
2590317 15915133
1 736 750 1 782 364
19 696 783 33675 829

* Unutilized capacity has been calculated according to Intermational Accounting Standard No. 2
"Inventory” and classifies as other expenses where it does not consider a part of the cost of

revenue for the reason of factory non-running,
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23 OTHER INCOME/ (EXPENSES), (net)

2020 2019
Rcfund amounts from the combined bill to pay the residence - 1 271 364
Amount received from The High Institute for Plastic 315333 -
Revenue from Small and Medium Enterprises Authority 485 039 -
Fine delay repayment of amounts duc to customers 630 189 -
Employees adjustments 278 450 -
Scrap sales 147 969 30 509
Foreign currency exchanges (48 643) (58 278)
Reverse of impairment of property, plant, and equipment. . 3 340 685
Other 325 787 497 023
2134123 5081303
24 FINAN T
2020 2019
Follow-up cxpenses for the loan of SIDF 515717 338452
Amortization of deferred finance expenses 589 328 329926
Loan interests of facilities from banks 2 059 736 3294 206
Lease interest expenscs 392 700 351 047
Interest cost related to defined benefits obligations 307 632 433 921
3865113 4 747 552

25 THE ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

The parent Company has owned the whole quotas in the FPC Company (the subsidiary), where the
Company during March 2020 signing an agreement which states the Partner's waiver of all his
quotas of the 20% in FPC Company with all its rights and obligations in favor of the parent
Company, Against obtaining a percentage 20% from net profit according to auditing financial
statements at the end of each year over ten years (duration of the agreement) till the end of a
financial year ended on 31 December 2029, Accordingly, The Company has prepared a final study
for the contingent liability as of December 31, 2020, And that a contingent liability was calculated
by the best cstimatc in the light of available data, amounted the contingent liability on that date SR
20 325 000, it has been classified within non-current liabilities in the financial position and will
re-estimate this a contingent liability annually over the duration of the agreement. This acquisition
has resulted in an amount of SR 25 358 702 that represents the difference of a purchase the rights of
Non-controlling interest which have been classified within the equity, as the following the
summarized of this treatment:

Acquisition
= Adjustments 31,2020
Adjusted
Contingent Liability against Non- )
Controlling Interests Acquisition 2035000 223000
Equity for non-controlling interests (5033 702) 5033 702 -

Effect of Non-Controlling Interests Acquisition - 25358702 25358 702
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26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2020, the amount of the contingent liabilities related to the banks'

Ictters of guarantee and letters of credit which issucs by domestic banks on behalf of the
group amounted to SR 9 848 798 (December 31, 2019: SR 15 977 372).

(December 31, 2019: SR 15 972 573).
27 SEGMENTS REPORTS

As of December 31, 2020 the capital commitments for the group amounted to SR 955 743

The segments reports are related to the activities and busincss of the group which adopted by the
management as a basis for preparing the financial data their own and they are in line with the

reporting methods of the inside.

The Group practices its business through two operating segments present in the production and
salc of packing matcrials for the parent Company and Technical textiles for the subsidiary.

An operating scgment is a component of the Group that

engages in business activities from

which it may ¢arn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group's other components, whose operating resulis are reviewed

regularly by the Group's management.

December 31,2020
The sector of
ucts of The sector of Adjystments
packing and technical transactions
packaging textiles w Total
Revenues 146 151 231 35361 591 181 512 822
Cost of revenues (121238 117) (31 217 926) 250 840 (152 205 203)
Profit/ (loss) of the year 8 681 760 (11908 631) 250 840 (2976 031)
December 31,2019
The sector
products of Thesectorof  Adjustments
packing and technical transactions
packaging textiles intercompany Total
Revenues 151 218 918 12 920 926 . 164 139 844
Cost of revenues (130 850 395) (12 903 376) 250 840 (143 502 931)
Profit/ (loss) of the year 2 556 150 (28 833 196) 250 840 (26 026 206)

The details of using the assets of the group before the segments and liabilities for the relevant

represents as follows:

December 31,2020
The sector of
products of The sector of Adjustments
packing and technical transactions
packaging textiles intercompany Total
Non-current assets 140 371 889 85942 762 (66 760 835) 160 553 827
Total assets 300 004 598 121 850 170 (112 193 992) 309 660 676
Total liabilities 126 396 094 125719 641 (71 158 764) 180 956 971
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December 31,2019

The sector of

products of The sector of Adjustments

packing and technical transactions

packaging textiles intercompany Total
Non-current asscts 64112 871 83 821 613 6382122 154 316 606
Total assets 260 666 618 110 060 206 (78 535 014) 292 191 810
Total liabilitics 105 881 605 124 795 327 (91 052 907) 139 624 025
Geographical segment

A geographical segment is a Group of assets, operations or entities engaged in revenue producing
activities within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and retums different
from those operating in other economic environments. The Group’s operation is conducted mainly
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The selected financial information covering the revenue as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, categorized by these geographic segments is as follows:

2020 %
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 128 685291 %71
Other countries 52827531 %29
181 512 822
28 THE TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2019

106 292 853 %65

57 846 991

164 139 844

%35

The related parties represented in the shareholders and the members of the board of directors and
senior management personnel in the Company and the institutions which own or manage by these
actors or individuals as well the institutions which practice on these actors/individuals collectively

or individually common control and significant influence,

Benefits, rewards, and compensation for key management personnel represent in as follows:

December 31,2020
Members of the
Members of Key management committees
boards of personnel and emanating from Total
directors  senior executives  the Board of
Directors
Salaries and wages - 3050319 - 3050 319
Allowances 87 000 1 093 632 141 000 1321632
Bonus 874 500 150 000 550 000 1574 500
End of service - 110 955 - 110 955
December 31,2019
Members of the
Members of Key management  commitiees
boards of personneland  emanating from Total
directors  senior executives  the Board of
Directors

Salaries and wages - 2 890 030 - 2 890 030
Allowances 102 000 1046 573 117 000 1265573
Bonus | 414 500 296111 250 000 1960 611
End of service - 28 000 - 28 000
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e measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be disposed of or a liability scttied
between knowledgeable willing partics in an arm's length transaction at the measurement
date. Under the definition of fair value, there is an assumption that a Group is a going
concern as there is no intention or condition to materially curtail the scale of its operations or
to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is considered to be active in an active market if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from a foreign exchange dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service or regulator and that these prices represent market transactions that have
occurred in an actual and regular manner on a commercial basis.

[n measuring fair value, the Group uses observable market information whenever possible.
Fair values are classified into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for similar assets or liabilities that
may be obtained at the measurement date.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are included in Level 1 which are directly
observable for assets or liabilities (eg prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Levcel 3: inputs for assets or liabilitics that are not based on observable market information
(unobservable inputs).

[f the inputs used to measure the fair valuc of an asset or liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is fully classified at the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is considered material to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end of
the reporting period in which the change occurred. During the periods ended December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value levels,

Where the Group's financial instruments are grouped on a historical cost basis, except for
investments and derivative financial instruments carried at fair value, differences may arise
between the carrying amounts and fair value estimates. Management belicves that the fair
values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their

carrying values.
December 31, 2020
Book value
Einancial  Financial
assets assets at Total
measured at  amortized
fair value cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables (Net) - 40252 232 40252232
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 37 989 409 - 37 989 409
Prepayments and other receivables - 771 314 771 314
Cash and cash equivalents - 8 636 253 8 636 253

37989409 49659 799 87 649 208
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Financial liabilities

Loans

Trade Payables

Lease Liabilities

Contingent Liability against Non-Conlrolling
Interests Acquisition

Accrued and Other Liabilitics

Financial assets

Trade reccivables (Net)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Prepayments and other reccivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Loans

‘I'rade Payables

l.case Liabilities

Accrued and Other Liabilities

29-2 Kinancial instruments risk management:

December 31, 2020
Liabilities
assets at
meay at Total
“h. m _A_IIM
D cost
109138 162 109138 163
: 12010 401 12 010 401
. 8 096 392 8 096 392
20 325 000 - 20 325 000
. 13 836 267 13 836 267
20325000 143081223 163 406 223
December 31, 2019
Book value
Kinancial Financial
sl assetsat Total
measured at  amortized Lol
fair value cost
. 48 402 341 48 402 341
19 606 108 . 19 606 108
. 1323789 1323789
- 6217 060 6217 060
19606 108 55943190 75 549 298
December 31, 2019
measuredaq  S3ELAL Total
mm W
cost
93 130 915 93 130 915
. 8 596 984 8 596 984
. 8 453 730 8 453 730
- 12 615 291 12 615 291
- 122 796 920 122 796 920

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, credit risk, liquidity risk,

market price risk and capital management risk.

The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks lo minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.
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Financial risk management framework

The risk management policy is implemented by the senior management in accordance with
the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The semor management identifies, assesses
and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Group's operating units. The most
important types of risk are credit risk, currency risk, fair value and interest rates for cash
flows,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishing and overseeing the Group's
risk management framework. The executive management team is responsible for developing
and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The work team conducts meetings
regularly, and any changes or matters related to compliance with policies are reported to the
Board of Directors through the Audit Committee,

The risk management systems arc reviewed regularly by the executive management team to
reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activities. The Group aims, through
training, management standards and procedures, to develop a responsible and constructive
control environment in which all employees are aware of their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversces management's compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the appropriatencss of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The financial instruments included in the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other reccivables, loans, trade and other payables. The methods of evidence used
are disclosed in the policy statement for each clause.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of financial instruments may fluctuate
due to changes in market prices. Market risk consists of three types of risks: interest rate
risk, currency risk, and other price risk.

Interest rate risk
The following are the loans obtained by the Group, which carry variable interest according
to the interest rates prevailing in the market,

Financial instruments at interest rates variable 31,20

Fin variable 31,2020 19
Short & long term loans 72 684 083 67 270 475
Foreign currency risk:

Currency risk is the fluctuation in the value of a financial instrument due to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates. The Group is not substantially exposed to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates during its normal business cycle, given that the Group's significant
transactions during the year were carried out in Saudi riyals and the US dollar, and as the
exchange rate of the Saudi nya! is fixed against the US dollar, so there are no significant
risks associated with transactions and balances.

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will not be able to meet its
obligations, and this will cause the other party to incur a financial loss, Credit risk is the risk
that the Group will incur a financial loss if the customer or counterparty fails to fulfill its
contractual obligations. It arises mainly from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk,

-48 -



FILLING AND PACKING MATERIALS MANUFACTURING COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

December ~ December

31.2020 31,2019

Trade accounts receivables 40 252 232 48 402 341

Cash and cash equivalent 8 636 253 6217 060
48 888 485 54 619 401

Trade receivables:

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each individual customer. However, management also considers factors that may have an
impact on the credit risk of the group's customer base, including the risk of default in the
customer’s sector. The Group establishes an allowance for expected credit losses, which on
December 31, 2020 AD amounted to SAR 2,915,420 (December 31, 2019 amounted to SR
4,192,386).

Cash and cash equivalents:

The Group maintains cash in the fund and with banks in an amount of 8.6 million Saudi
riyals (December 31, 2019: 6.2 million Saudi nyals). Liquidity risk is the risk that the
group will encounter difficulty in fulfilling its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by paying in cash or Through other financial assets, the group’s
approach to managing hiquidity aims to ensure that it always has sufficient liquidity, as far
as possible, to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and critical circumstances,
without incurring losses or jeopardizing the group’s reputation.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the difficulty that an entity will encounter in raising funds to meet
obligations related to financial instruments. Liquidity risk can result from an inability to
sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value, Liquidity risk is managed
by monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis and ensuring that sufficient financial resources
are in place. Concentration in liquidity risk may arisec from conditions of repayment of
financial obligations, sources of financing and loans, or reliance on a specific market to
obtain liguid assets. The following are the maturities of the financial liabilities at the end of
the year, which are presented as following:

December 31, 2020
On demand From 1
Bookvalue  orlessthan  yearfp§  Soreinen e
one year years

Financial liabilities
Loans 109 138 163 65 688 313 43 449 850
Accounts Payable — Trade 12 010 401 12 010 401 5
Lease liability 8 096 392 375 205 7721 187 .
Contingent Liability against Non- 20 325 000 2 6317 000 14 008 000
Controlling Interests Acquisition
Accrued and Other Creditors 17 070 950 17 070 950 s .

166 640 906 95 144 869 57 488 037 14 008 000
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December 31, 2019
On demand Erom 1
Book value or less than yearto § %"’L"—f‘“
one year Years

Financial liabilities
Loans 93 130915 41 540 910 51 590 005
Accounts Payable — Trade 8 596 984 8 596 984 :
Lease liability 8 453 730 157 338 8 096 392
Accrued and Other Creditors 15 524 273 15524273 - ,

125 705 902 66 019 505 59 686 397 .

Capital management:

The Group's goal when managing capital is to maintain the Group's ability to continue as a
going concem so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to
other stakeholders. And maintaining a strong capital base to support the sustainable
development of its business.

The following is an analysis of the Group's net debt-to-equity ratios:
December December

31, 2020 31,2019
Total habilities 180 956 971 139 624 025
Less: Cash and cash equivalent (8 636 253) (6 217 060)
Net liabilities 172320 718 133 406 965
Total Equity 128 703 705 152 567 785
Ratio of debt to adjusted capital 1.34 0.87

30 The impact of Corona virus (Covid-19):
In response to the spread of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) at the beginning of 2020 and its spread

in several geographical regions around the world and the resulting disruptions to economic
activities and businesses, the group formed a working group to assess the expected effects on the
group's business inside the Kingdom. The Group has also taken a series of preventive measures
to ensure the health and safety of its employees, customers and society to ensure the continuity
of its operations.

The effects of the pandemic on the group's activities included the production process being
affected relatively for some time as a result of taking precautionary mecasures directed by
government authorities, which were mainly represented in isolating influential workers suspected
of being infected and applying the legal procedures related to travel and movement restrictions
as well as the delay in the armival of some raw materials necessary for the production process.
And the effect extended on selling prices in some products and also there was an impact on
demand in other products, in addition to some difficulties that the group faced in its export
operations and high freight rates. Given the levels of production results for all products, they
remained at their normal levels, and therefore do not expect the occurrence of substantial effects.
Due to the emerging corona virus (Covid-19) on the balance sheet and results for the fiscal year
ending on December 31, 2020.
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Since the extent and duration of these effects are still uncertain and depend on future
developments that cannot be predicted accurately at the present time, management and those
responsible for governance will continue to monitor the situation in the Kingdom and all
geographical areas with which the group deals with the purpose of reviewing and assessing
potential risks related to the supply chain. Raw materials, human resources, current stock levels,
ensuring the continuity and opcration of the production facilities of the group companies without
interruption and providing stakeholders with developments as required by laws and regulations.

31 Subsequent events:

Management believes that there have not been any significant subsequent events since the end of
the year that would require disclosure or amendment to these consolidated financial statements.

32 Comparative figures:

-~ The comparative figures for some items of the consolidatcd balance sheet have been
reclassified in order to be in line with the current presentation of the financial statements.

- Some comparative figures have been amended for some items of the balance sheet. The
following is the effect of reclassification / amendment on the consolidated financial

statements:
32-1 Consolidated tion
Balances
2019 a
Dofe previously
presented
Property, plant, and equipment (A) 140 246 918
Inventory (B) 47 479 824
Prepaid and other debit balances  (A,D) 22 780 135
End of services benefits (D) (10 216 208)
Retained eamings (D) 24 106 005
Non-controlling interest (D) (2947 024)
32-2 Statement of Profits or Losses
Balances
2019 as
Dlote previously
presented
Cost of revenues (E) 141 674 459
General and administrative cxpenses  (E) 35938 221
Financing cost (E) 4313632
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Reclassificati
Debit/ (Credit)

6131297
118 869

(6 729 133)
478 971

2 086 678
(2 086 678)

Reclassification

Debit/ (Credit)

1 828 472
(2 262 392)
433920

Balances 2019

after
reclassification

146 378 215
47 598 693
16 051 002
(9737 237)
26 192 683

(5 033 702)

Balances 2019
after
reclassification
143 502 931
33 675 829

4 747 552
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32-3 Loss per share
Note Balances 2019
aspreviously  Adjustment  SSusted
presented £22
Basic share loss from net loss
for the year (D) (1.94) (0.18) (1.76)

- There is no material impact on the cash flow statement of the above amendments,

A) Advance payments to suppliers and documentary credits related to the purchase of
property, machinery and equipment have been reclassified under the property, plant
and cquipment item,

B) Letters of credits have been reclassified to the inventory item.

C) Payments to employees have been reclassified under the end of service gratuity
account as a reduction from employee benefit obligations.

D) The balance of the non-controlling interests has been adjusted as a result of an
amendment in the statement of profits and losses of the subsidiary and accordingly, the
balance of retained earnings and the share of loss per share had to be adjusted.

E) Some expenses have been reclassified under cost of revenues and financing expenses
instead of general and administrative expenses.

33 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS APPROVAL
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by Board of Directors on 13 Rajab
1442 H corresponding to 25 February 2021 G.
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